
 

City of Willowick 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, September 05, 2023 at 7:30 PM 

City Council Chambers 

ADA NOTICE 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations 

(including auxiliary communicative aids and services) during this meeting should notify the City of 

Willowick at 440-585-3700 at least three working days before the meeting. 

AGENDA 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

1. The Fifteenth Meeting of Council 

PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE  

INVOCATION 

ROLL CALL OF COUNCIL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2. Motion to Approve the Minutes from the August 15, 2023, Regular Council Meeting 

3. Motion to Approve the Minutes from the August 24, 2023, Emergency Special Council 

Meeting 

APPOINTMENTS, SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS & PROCLAMATIONS 

4. A Proclamation Recognizing Emerson Hren 

5. Motion to Appoint Nikolas Janek to the Lake County Board of Health for a Term Ending 

December 31, 2025 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS 

REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR/SAFETY DIRECTOR 

COUNCIL DISCUSSION OF THE MAYOR’S REPORT 

GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS & REPORTS – Directors & Officials 

Service Director – Todd Shannon 

Recreation Director – Julie Kless 

City Engineer – Tim McLaughlin 

Finance Director – Cheryl Benedict 

Law Director – Mandy Gwirtz for Stephanie Landgraf 

Police Chief – Rob Daubenmire 

Fire Chief – Bill Malovrh 

Page 1



  

City of Willowick City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 9/5/2023 

 

Chief Housing/Zoning Inspector – Sean Brennan 

WARD MATTERS 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

a) Public statement (1 minute maximum) 

b) Council response to the public 

c) Public clarification (30 seconds to 1 minute for the purpose of restating or rearticulating an 

original   question, concern, suggestion or idea) 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

Finance – Bisbee, Mohorcic, Loncala 

Safety – Phares, Malta, Bisbee 

Service, Utilities & Public Lands – Malta, Phares, Loncala 

Streets, Sidewalks & Sewers – Malta, Antosh, Mohorcic 

Tax Compliance – Koudela, Antosh, Loncala 

Moral Claims – Antosh, Phares, Koudela 

Budget – Mohorcic, Bisbee, Koudela 

LIAISON REPORTS 

Planning – Phares/Alternate Antosh 

Board of Zoning Appeals – Loncala/Alternate Koudela 

Volunteer Fire Fighters’ Dependents Fund Board – Antosh, Phares 

Recreation Board – Bisbee/Alternate Phares 

Plan Review Board – Antosh 

Hearts & Hammers – Malta 

FUND TRANSFERS & BID AUTHORIZATIONS 

CONTRACT APPROVALS 

6. Motion for the Mayor to Enter into a Contract with Avon Bay Construction in the Amount of 

$5,600.00 for Patio Repairs at the Willowick Senior Center 

INTRODUCTION & CONSIDERATION OF LEGISLATION 

7. Resolution No. 2023-36 

A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Willowick to Prepare and Submit an 

Application to Participate in the Ohio Public Works Commission State Capital Improvement 

and/or Transportation Improvement Programs, to Execute Contracts as Required and Declaring 

an Emergency 

 

 

 

Page 2



  

City of Willowick City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 9/5/2023 

 

 

8. Resolution No. 2023-37 

A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Willowick to Enter into an Agreement with 

LakeTran for the Commercial Driver's License Training of Service Department Employees and 

Declaring an Emergency 

9. Resolution No. 2023-38 

A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to Stryker in the Amount 

of $16,446.00 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency 

10. Resolution No. 2023-39 

A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to Lake County Treasurer 

in the Amount of $4,395.43 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency 

11. Ordinance No. 2023-40 

An Ordinance Fixing the Compensation of Adult School Guards and Declaring an Emergency 

12. Ordinance No. 2023-41 

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 023-5 to Provide for Additional Appropriations from the 

General Fund (101); Fairway Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (432); for Current Expenses and 

Other Expenditures of the City of Willowick, State of Ohio, During the Calendar Year Ending 

December 31, 2023, and Declaring an Emergency 

MISCELLANEOUS #1 

13. Motion to Authorize the Mayor to Execute an Agreement with Polito Properties, LLC Relating 

to the Disposition of Insurance Proceeds 

14. Motion Authorizing CT Consultants an Additional Fee of $11,000 for Construction 

Administration and Inspection Services for the E. 327th Street Sewer Rehabilitation Phase II 

Project 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 Motion to Adjourn to Executive Session to Discuss the Employment of a Public Employee 

RETURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

MISCELLANEOUS #2 

Motion Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a Contract with Hartman Personnel Services for a 

Temporary Employee with the Option to Become a Full Time Hired Employee 

ADJOURNMENT 

Page 3



Page 4

Item #6.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-36 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
WILLOWICK TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION STATE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND/OR LOCAL TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS, AND TO EXECUTE CONTRACTS AS 
REQUIRED, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, the State Capital Improvement Program and the Local Transportation 
Improvement Program both provide financial assistance to political subdivisions for capital 
improvements to public infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Willowick is planning to make capital improvements as part of its 
E. 305th Sewer Rehabilitation Project; and 

WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements above-described are considered to be a 
priority need for the City and are qualified projects under the OPWC programs; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILLOWICK, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF OHIO: 

Section 1. That the Mayor of the City Willowick is hereby authorized to apply to the Ohio 
Public Works Commission for funds as described above, and to execute any and all agreements and 
documents necessary to formalize the validity and implementation of the City's participation in that 
funding. 

Section 2. All formal actions of this Council concerning the passage of this Resolution 
were adopted in an open meeting, and that all deliberations of this Council, or any of its 
Committees, which resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements, including Chapter 107 of the Codified Ordinances of the 
City of Willowick and Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 3. This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the 
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety, welfare and dignity of the 
residents of the City of Willowick, and further. 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage 
by Council and approval by the Mayor. 

PASSED: _________________, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

________________________________ 
Monica Koudela, President of Council 

Page 5

Item #7.



SUBMITTED to the Mayor for his approval 
 
On _______________________, 2023 
 
 
        APPROVED by the Mayor on 
         
        _______________________, 2023 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________   ________________________________ 
Christine Morgan, Clerk of Council    Michael J. Vanni, Mayor 

Page 6

Item #7.



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-37____ 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
WILLOWICK TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH LAKETRAN FOR 
THE COMMERICAL DRIVER’S LICENSE TRAINING OF SERVICE 
DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Willowick is able to have its service employees receive commercial 
driver’s license (“CDL”) training through Laketran pursuant to the terms of a training agreement.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Willowick, County of 
Lake, and State of Ohio: 
 
 Section 1. That the Mayor of the City of Willowick is hereby authorized to enter a written 
Agreement with Laketran for the CDL training of its service department employees, in a form substantially 
similar to the agreement annexed as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, and to execute all documentation 
necessary to formalize the validity and implementation of said Agreement.   
 
 Section 2.  It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the passage of this Resolution were conducted in an open meeting of this Council and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such actions were conducted in 
meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements including Chapter 123 of the Codified 
Ordinances of the City of Willowick. 
 
 Section 3. This Resolution constitutes an emergency measure in that the same provides for 
the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of the City of 
Willowick and further provides for the usual and necessary daily operation of the municipal service 
department; wherefore, this Resolution shall be in full force and take effect immediately upon its passage 
by Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________, 2023 
                 _______________________________ 
                 Monica Koudela, President of Council 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor for his approval 
on ______________________, 2023           
    

APPROVED by the Mayor on 
                  ________________________, 2023 
 
 
         
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________            ______________________________ 
Christine Morgan, Clerk of Council             Michael J. Vanni, Mayor 

Page 7

Item #8.



Page 8

Item #9.



Page 9

Item #9.



Page 10

Item #9.



Page 11

Item #9.



Page 12

Item #10.



Page 13

Item #10.



Page 14

Item #10.



Page 15

Item #10.



Page 16

Item #10.



Page 17

Item #10.



ORDINANCE NO.  2023-40 
 
AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION OF ADULT SCHOOL GUARDS AND 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWICK, LAKE 
COUNTY, STATE OF OHIO: 
 
 SECTION 1: That effective with the first full pay period in September 2023, adult school 
guards shall receive compensation at a rate of Eleven Dollars and Seventy-Five Cents ($11.75) per 
hour; provided, however, that in no event shall the compensation paid to any adult school guard for 
any on day of the work be less than $11.75. 
 
 SECTION 2: That school guards will be paid up to five (5) days pay, per school year when 
schools are closed for inclement weather 
 
 SECTION 3: That Ordinance No. 2022-21, passed on April 19, 2022 and any other 
ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed effective 
September 5, 2023. 
 

 SECTION  4:  That this Ordinance constitutes an emergency measure in that the same 
provides for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare of the 
inhabitants of the City of Willowick an further, provides for the usual daily operation of a municipal 
department; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval by the Mayor. 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________, 2023 
        

________________________________ 
       Monica Koudela, President of Council 
 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor for his approval                        
 
on ___________________________, 2023 
       APPROVED by the Mayor on 
                          ___________________________, 2023 
 
 

___________________________          
Michael J. Vanni, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:    
 

____________________________________ 
Christine Morgan, Clerk of Council     
 
 
  

Page 18

Item #11.



GENERAL FUND

  Security of Persons & Property

    Safety Communications Dept.

      Personal Services

        Wages - Clerk Dispatchers 101.100.5136 3,000.00                                             

          Total Salaries & Wages 3,000.00                                             

            Total Safety Communications Department 3,000.00                                             

    Fire Prevention & Inspection

      Personal Services

      Other

        Contract Services 101.102.5354 150,000.00                                         

          Total Other Expense 150,000.00                                         

            Total Fire Department 150,000.00                                         

    Swimming Pools

      Personal Services

        Wages - Leisure & Regular 101.302.5150 4,200.00                                             

            Total Wages & Salaries 4,200.00                                             

      Other

        P.E.R.S. 101.302.5220 650.00                                                

        Medicare 101.302.5260 100.00                                                

          Total Other Expense 750.00                                                

            Total Swimming Pools 4,950.00                                             

    Finance Administration

      Personal Services

      Other

        Contract Employees 101.702.5354 24,000.00                                           

          Total Other Expense 24,000.00                                           

            Total Finance Department 24,000.00                                           

    Legislative

      Other

        Social Security 101.705.5265 500.00                                                

          Total Other Expense 500.00                                                

            Total General Govt. 500.00                                                

SECTION 2.  That there be appropriated from the General Fund:

ORDINANCE NO. 2023 - 41

SECTION 1.  Be it ordained by the Council of the City of Willowick, State of Ohio, that to provide for the current 

expenses and other expenditures of said City of Willowick during the calendar year ending December 31, 2023, that the 

following sums be and they are hereby set aside and appropriated as follows:

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2023 - 5 TO PROVIDE FOR ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS FROM 

THE GENERAL FUND (101); FAIRWAY STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENT FUND (432); FOR CURRENT 

EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF WILLOWICK, STATE OF OHIO, DURING THE 

CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

1
Page 19

Item #12.



              TOTAL GENERAL FUND: 182,450.00                              

FAIRWAY STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENT FUND

      Other

        Capital Improvement 432.917.5600 984,500.00                                         

984,500.00                                         

               TOTAL ALL FUNDS 1,166,950.00                                      

PASSED:  _________________________ , 2023

         _________________________

Submitted to the Mayor for his approval                    Council President

on _________________________, 2023

          Approved by the Mayor on

ATTEST:

______________________________           _________________________

            Clerk of Council                          Mayor

SECTION 3.  That there be appropriated from the Fairway Storm Sewer Improvement Fund:

SECTION 7.  That this Ordinance is hereby declared and determined to be an emergency measure necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety of said City for the reason that immediate provision must be made 

for the appropriation herein provided for and it shall, therefore, be in effect immediately upon its approval by the Mayor 

of the City.

SECTION 5.  All formal actions of this Council concerning the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open 

meeting, and that all deliberations of this Council, or any of its Committees, which resulted in such formal action, were 

in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 3.12 of the Charter of the 

City of Willowick and Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 6.  That the Clerk of Council be and she is hereby requested to deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to 

the Lake County Auditor.

         _________________________ , 2023

SECTION 4.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make expenditures or payments from any of the 

foregoing appropriations upon receiving proper certification and vouchers therefore, approved by the Board of Officers 

authorized by law to approve the same, or an Ordinance or Resolution of Council to make the expenditures; provided 

that no warrants shall be drawn or paid for salaries or wages except to persons employed by authority of and in 

accordance with law or ordinance.

2
Page 20

Item #12.



1 

 

AGREEMENT 

  

This Agreement entered into on August ____, 2023, by and between Polito 

Properties, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company with a principal placed of business 

located at 28809 Lake Shore Blvd., Willowick, Ohio 44095 (“Polito”) and the City of 

Willowick located at 30435 Lakeshore Blvd., Willowick, Ohio 44095 (“Willowick”). 

Polito and Willowick are collectively known as the "Parties". 

 

WHEREAS, Polito is the owner of certain commercial property located at 28809 

Lake Shore Blvd., Willowick, Ohio 44095, which sustained fire damage on or about 

September 24, 2022 resulting in significant damage to its building and structure; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Codified Ordinance 141.07, when loss to an insured 

within the City of Willowick equal or exceeds 60% of the aggregate limits of liability on 

all fire policies covering the building or other structure, the insurance company shall adhere 

to R.C. 3929.86 and transfer funds to the Director of Finance of the City in the amount of 

$2,000 for each $15,000 of the claim; and   

 

WHEREAS,  Polito’s insurance policy limit is $626,712.00, and Polito’s insurance 

carrier has estimated the loss to be approximately $398,533.94; and  

 

WHEREAS, Polito has removed or caused to be remedied all instances of fire 

damage and gutted the interior of the building to the studs/rafters, to the satisfaction of both 

the fire department and building department; and 

 

 WHERES, the City has not incurred any costs of repair, removal or securing of 

Polito’s property as a result of said fire damage; and  

 

WHEREAS, the aforementioned Parties desire to enter into this Agreement 

pursuant to Codified Ordinance 141.07(B) to authorize the transfer of the insurance 

proceeds directly to Polito in lieu of the City of Willowick.  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants herein contained, 

and other consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by 

the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The insurance proceeds for the fire damage to the building/structure located 

at 28809 Lake Shore Blvd., Willowick, Ohio 44095, owned by Polito 

Properties, LLC, occurring on or about 9-24-2022, in the amount of 

$398,533.94 is authorized to be paid by Travelers Property Casualty Company 

of America directly to Polito Properties, LLC.  

 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 

dates set forth below. 

 

Page 21

Item #13.



2 

City of Willowick:  

 

 

     By_________________________________ 

                                                                 Mayor Michael Vanni 

 

 

     Polito Properties, LLC  

 

 

     By_________________________________ 

                                                                 Dominic Polito, Managing Member 

 

 

Approved by: 

 

 

________________________________ 

City of Willowick, Finance Director 

 

 

________________________________ 

City of Willowick, Law Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22

Item #13.



Page 23

Item #15.



Page 24

Item #16.


	Top
	Item #6.	Motion for the Mayor to Enter into a Contract with Avon Bay Construction in the Amount of $5,600.00 for Patio Repairs at the Willowick Senior Center
	Avon Bay Contract

	Item #7.	A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Willowick to Prepare and Submit an Application to Participate in the Ohio Public Works Commission State Capital Improvement and/or Transportation Improvement Programs, to Execute Contracts as Required and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2023-36 OPWC

	Item #8.	A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Willowick to Enter into an Agreement with LakeTran for the Commercial Driver's License Training of Service Department Employees and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2023-37 LakeTran Contract (CDL)

	Item #9.	A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to Stryker in the Amount of $16,446.00 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2023-38 Then and Now Stryker

	Item #10.	A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to Lake County Treasurer in the Amount of $4,395.43 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2023-39 Then and Now LC Treasurer

	Item #11.	An Ordinance Fixing the Compensation of Adult School Guards and Declaring an Emergency
	Ord 2023-40 Crossing Guard Raise

	Item #12.	An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 023-5 to Provide for Additional Appropriations from the General Fund (101); Fairway Storm Sewer Improvement Fund (432); for Current Expenses and Other Expenditures of the City of Willowick, State of Ohio, During the Calendar Year Ending December 31, 2023, and Declaring an Emergency
	Ord 2023-41 Appropriations 9-5

	Item #13.	Motion to Authorize the Mayor to Execute an Agreement with Polito Properties, LLC Relating to the Disposition of Insurance Proceeds
	Agreement re insurance proceeds

	Item #15.	Motion Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a Contract with Hartman Personnel Services for a Temporary Employee with the Option to Become a Full Time Hired Employee
	Temp Agency Agreement

	Item #16.	Motion to Adjourn to Executive Session to Discuss the Employment of a Public Employee
	Temp Agency Agreement

	Bottom

